
Dedicated to supporting the creation, retention, expansion, and recruitment 
of businesses and jobs that will enhance the economy of the Port District. 

PORT COMMISSION REGULAR SESSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 9, 2023, 5:30 P.M. AT PORT ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL Executive Assistant Toepke

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. AGENDA CORRECTIONS OR ADDITIONS Executive Director Klaas

E. PUBLIC COMMENT OR QUESTION 3-minute limit per person per subject.
*The Commission does not respond to nor discuss issues raised during public comment.

F. ACTION ITEMS
1. July 12, 2023, Regular Session Meeting Minutes
2. July 2023 Financial Reports Commissioner Coburn
3. Resolution No. 2023-004 Adopting a Supplemental Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024

G. REPORTS
1. Director’s Report Executive Director Klaas
2. Strategic Business Plan Update Report Executive Director Klaas

o Strategic Business Plan Draft
3. The Dalles Community Outreach Team Commissioner Weast
4. Columbia Gateway Urban Renewal Agency Board Commissioner Coburn
5. The Dalles Area Chamber of Commerce Board Executive Assistant Toepke No report; awaiting to attend first meeting.
6. Wasco County Economic Development Commission Executive Assistant Toepke No report; next meeting in September.
7. Dufur Commissioner Wallace

H. EXECUTIVE SESSION Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e) Real Property Transactions & ORS 192.660(2)(h) Conferring with Legal
Counsel regarding litigation *Media representatives are instructed not to report or disclose matters discussed in Executive
Session.

I. ACTION REQUIRED FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION

J. UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS
• August 14, 2023: KIHR Radio
• August 18, 2023: KODL Radio
• September 11, 2023: KIHR Radio
• September 13, 2023: Port Commission Meeting in Dufur!

K. COMMISSION CALL

L. ADJOURN

1/177



PORT OF THE DALLES AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
MEETING DATE   August 9, 2023 
 
ACTION ITEM F-1.)  July 12, 2023, Regular Session Meeting Minutes 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve July 12, 2023, Regular Session Meeting Minutes as presented 
 

 
 
 
 

2/177



PORT OF THE DALLES COMMISSION 
Regular Session Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, July 12, 2023, 7:00 p.m. 
Port Administrative Office, The Dalles, Oregon 

 
The Regular Session Meeting of the Port Commissioners was called to order by President Weast at 7:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL Executive Assistant Toepke 
 COMMISSION Greg Weast, President; Robert Wallace, Vice-President; Staci Coburn, Treasurer; John Willer, Assistant 

Secretary/Treasurer; Mary Hanlon 
 STAFF Andrea Klaas, Executive Director; Jennifer Toepke, Executive Assistant/Bookkeeper; Bill Dick, Attorney, Dick, Dick & Corey 
 MEDIA Alana Lackner, Columbia Gorge News 
 GUESTS Angie Macnab, Owner/Operator, The Dalles Marina, LLC 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Commissioner Weast 
 
AGENDA CORRECTIONS/ADDITIONS Add Action Item 4. Consider Letter of Support for the appointment of Elaine Albrich to the Columbia 
River Gorge Commission 
 
OATH OF OFFICE Attorney Dick administered the Oath of Office for the July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2026 term, for Commissioner Weast in 
Position 2; Commissioner Coburn in Position 4; and Commissioner Hanlon in Position 5. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT OR QUESTION None 
 
COMMUNITY PARTNER UPDATE Jose Aparicio, Board Chair and Dr. Carolyn Bernal, Superintendent 
North Wasco County School District 21 
See provided presentation material in meeting packet. Superintendent Bernal & Chair Aparicio highlighted some points: The bond range was $120-
$140 million, $120 million would have been the building only, $140 million would give some enhancements: upgrade athletic facilities, CTE expansion 
- so it was decided $140 million would be the target.; only 12% of students can eat lunch on campus because the cafeteria does not have the capacity; 
the average school in America is 44 years old, The Dalles High School is 82 years old and Wahtonka will turn 100 years old next year!; We have to 
turn the boiler on 3 days in advance in the winter to get the school heated.; There is a lack of secure entries – there are 43 access points into the High 
School.; it would have cost $129 million to repair the High School, so it was decided better to build a new one. Questions from the Commission - Q: 
What is the square footage of the new High School? A: The exact square footage is unknown; it will accommodate 950 students. Q: When the new High 
School will be built what will happen to Wahtonka School? A: Wahtonka will be leveled. Q: What is going to happen to the existing High School when 
the new High School is built? A: Upgrades to the existing High School are included in the $140 million – the district office will move there, part of the 
College, ESD, preschool, etc. – it will be a community-based center for all your 0-21 years one stop shop for schooling. Q: How much money is allocated 
for the remodel of the High School? A: Need to check that number. *Superintendent Bernal & Chair Aparicio said they would follow-up to provide the 
Port with the answers to questions they didn’t have during the presentation. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

1. June14, 2023, Regular Session Meeting Minutes Stand as presented.  
2. June 2023 Financial Reports Treasurer Coburn Stand as presented. 
3. Appoint Port representative to The Dalles Area Chamber of Commerce Board Executive Assistant Toepke volunteered and was 

appointed. 
4. Consider Letter of Support for the appointment of Elaine Albrich to the Columbia River Gorge Commission M/S. Coburn S/J. 

Willer, Motion Approved Unanimously. *Executive Director Klaas gave a brief background on Elaine Albrich and her role with the Port, 
City & County, for Commissioner Hanlon. 

 
REPORTS 

1. Director’s Report Executive Director Klaas Stands as included in meeting packet. 
2. The Dalles Marina, LLC Q4 FY 2022-2023 Concessionaire Report Owner/Operator Angie Macnab Highlighted verbally what was 

included in the meeting packet. Commissioner Weast asked who owns and is responsible for, the fire water pumps – Owner/Operator Macnab 
replied that The Dalles Marina, LLC owns and is responsible for the pumps. 

3. Strategic Business Plan Update Report Executive Director Klaas Stands as included in meeting packet. 
4. The Dalles Community Outreach Team Commissioner Weast & Executive Director Klaas Planning on going back to Washington, 

D.C. in September. In preparation, the COT hosted Congressional and Statehouse Staffers and some legislators to tour the community to see 
what’s going on – what the projects are. This used to take place before Covid – it’s great to bring it back, get boots on the ground to see the 
projects that are being taken back to D.C. *See Director’s Report in meeting packet for visit highlights and list of attendees. 

3/177



5. Columbia Gateway Urban Renewal Agency Board Commissioner Coburn The Board met in June and selected a bid to raise the ‘Tony’s 
Building’, it should be moving forward before November. Fencing will be secured around the area to keep folks out of the way when it’s being 
raised. Hopefully when it’s done, someone will be found to build a new building. 

6. Dufur Commissioner Wallace Dufur School is the Fire Camp Base for the Boulder Fire: portable kitchen, bathrooms, showers, etc. The fire 
is about 10-13 miles west of Rock Creek. Of course, the fire is bad, but the revenue is good for the school. Cherry harvest: having a tough 
season with the markets. Wheat harvest: lots of trucks on the road, seems to be doing well. There have been a few small fires in Dufur – one 
resulted in the loss of a house. 

7. The Dalles Area Chamber of Commerce Board Position vacant, no report. *New Port Representative assigned today: Executive 
Assistant Toepke 

8. Wasco County Economic Development Commission Executive Assistant Toepke Written report enclosed. 
 
REGULAR SESSION ADJOURNED AT 7:58 P.M. & EXECUTIVE SESSION COMMENCED AT 7:58 P.M. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION as allowed by ORS 192.660(2)(e) Real Property Transactions and ORS 192.660(2)(h) Conferring with Legal Counsel 
regarding litigation *Media representatives are instructed not to report or disclose matters discussed in Executive Session None 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION ADJOURNED AT 8:17 P.M. & REGULAR SESSION RESUMED AT 8:17 P.M. 
 
ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION None 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

 President: Commissioner Wallace M/S. Coburn S/G. Weast, Motion Approved Unanimously. 
 Vice-President: Commissioner Weast; Treasurer: Commissioner Coburn; Secretary: Commission Willer; Assistant Secretary/Treasurer: 

Commission Hanlon M/G. Weast S/J. Willer, Motion Approved Unanimously 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS Stands as presented. 
 
COMMISSION CALL Commissioner Weast congratulated Commissioner Wallace on being elected President and thanked Staff for the 
time working together while he was President. 
 
THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO COME BEFORE THE PORT COMMISSION, the meeting adjourned at 8:23 p.m. 
 
PORT OF THE DALLES:  ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Robert Wallace, President John Willer, Secretary 
Board of Commissioners Board of Commissioners 
 
 
DATE APPROVED: August 9, 2023 
Prepared by: Jennifer Toepke, Executive Assistant/Bookkeeper 
 

4/177



PORT OF THE DALLES AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
MEETING DATE   August 9, 2023 
 
ACTION ITEM F-2.)  July 2023 Financial Reports Executive Assistant Toepke 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve July 2023 Financial Reports as presented 
 

 
Notable 
 

• Savings 
o The Oregon State Treasury Short Term Fund Rate yielded 4.11%, with a bump at months end to 4.30% 
o First Interstate Bank Money Market Account produced 4.20% 

 Currently money is only allocated to the Port Development Fund, as money deposited was from a land sale. 
• Checking 

o Umpqua (CSB) Checking Account to be closed in the fall. 
o First Interstate Checking Account 

 Currently no money is allocated to the Marina Fund, that will change when the Umpqua Checking Account 
closes. 

• Uncommon Fund Activity 
o General Fund 

 Expense 
 Marina Launch Ramp Restroom Lock Replaced: $177.50 
 Marina Transient Guest Moorage First Biannual Algae Treatment: $675.00 
 Mid-Columbia Economic Development District Annual Member Dues: $3,341.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5/177



 Cash Basis  PORT OF THE DALLES
 Balance Sheet by Class

 As of July 31, 2023

General Fund Marina Fund Port Development Fund Unclassified TOTAL
ASSETS

Current Assets
Checking/Savings

CSB Checking
General Checking 29,594.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,594.06
Marina Checking 0.00 6,275.29 0.00 0.00 6,275.29
Port Development Checking 0.00 0.00 5,278.37 0.00 5,278.37

Total CSB Checking 29,594.06 6,275.29 5,278.37 0.00 41,147.72
FIB Checking

General Fund 9,011.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,011.90
Port Development Fund 0.00 0.00 25,760.00 0.00 25,760.00

Total FIB Checking 9,011.90 0.00 25,760.00 0.00 34,771.90
FIB Money Market

Port Development Fund 0.00 0.00 1,442,621.86 0.00 1,442,621.86
Total FIB Money Market 0.00 0.00 1,442,621.86 0.00 1,442,621.86
LGIP

General 1,336,406.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,336,406.23
Marina 0.00 249,398.02 0.00 0.00 249,398.02
Port Development 0.00 0.00 2,373,118.14 0.00 2,373,118.14

Total LGIP 1,336,406.23 249,398.02 2,373,118.14 0.00 3,958,922.39
Petty Cash 66.28 28.48 55.24 0.00 150.00

Total Checking/Savings 1,375,078.47 255,701.79 3,846,833.61 0.00 5,477,613.87
Total Current Assets 1,375,078.47 255,701.79 3,846,833.61 0.00 5,477,613.87

TOTAL ASSETS 1,375,078.47 255,701.79 3,846,833.61 0.00 5,477,613.87

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

Payroll Liabilities 3,009.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,009.40
Total Other Current Liabilities 3,009.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,009.40

Total Current Liabilities 3,009.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,009.40
Total Liabilities 3,009.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,009.40
Equity

Unrestricted Net Assets 1,383,530.92 254,837.72 3,832,821.27 0.00 5,471,189.91
Net Income -11,461.85 864.07 14,012.34 0.00 3,414.56

Total Equity 1,372,069.07 255,701.79 3,846,833.61 0.00 5,474,604.47
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,375,078.47 255,701.79 3,846,833.61 0.00 5,477,613.876/177



 Cash Basis  PORT OF THE DALLES
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual-GENERAL FUND

 July 2023

Jul 23 Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Beginning Fund Balance 0.00 1,096,994.00 0.0%

Interest from Earnings 4,968.91 32,910.00 15.1%

Other Resources

Grants 0.00 4,000,000.00 0.0%

Launch Ramp & Transient Moorage 130.00 3,000.00 4.33%

Leased Land & Facilities 8,200.00 60,000.00 13.67%

Loan Repayments

Marina Fund 0.00 84,466.00 0.0%

Total Loan Repayments 0.00 84,466.00 0.0%

Other Income 0.00 15,000.00 0.0%

Total Other Resources 8,330.00 4,162,466.00 0.2%

Previously Levied Taxes 967.81 5,000.00 19.36%

Property Taxes 1,762.19 430,251.00 0.41%

Transfer from Other Funds

Port Development Fund 0.00 200,000.00 0.0%

Transfer from Other Funds - Other 0.00 1,008,068.00 0.0%

Total Transfer from Other Funds 0.00 1,208,068.00 0.0%

Total Income 16,028.91 6,935,689.00 0.23%

Gross Profit 16,028.91 6,935,689.00 0.23%

Expense

Capital Outlay 0.00 4,050,000.00 0.0%

Material & Services 5,042.68 296,000.00 1.7%

Personal Services 22,448.08 400,000.00 5.61%

Transfers & Contingency 0.00 1,400,000.00 0.0%

Total Expense 27,490.76 6,146,000.00 0.45%

Net Ordinary Income -11,461.85 789,689.00 -1.45%
Net Income -11,461.85 789,689.00 -1.45%

7/177



 Cash Basis  PORT OF THE DALLES
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual-MARINA FUND

 July 2023

Jul 23 Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Beginning Fund Balance 0.00 337,157.00 0.0%

Interest from Earnings 864.07 10,115.00 8.54%

Other Resources

Fire Emergency 0.00 1,500,000.00 0.0%

Total Other Resources 0.00 1,500,000.00 0.0%

Total Income 864.07 1,847,272.00 0.05%

Gross Profit 864.07 1,847,272.00 0.05%

Expense

Capital Outlay 0.00 900,000.00 0.0%

Debt Service 0.00 84,466.00 0.0%

Transfers & Contingency 0.00 808,068.00 0.0%

Total Expense 0.00 1,792,534.00 0.0%

Net Ordinary Income 864.07 54,738.00 1.58%
Net Income 864.07 54,738.00 1.58%

8/177



 Cash Basis  PORT OF THE DALLES
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual-PORT DEVELOPMENT FUND

 July 2023

Jul 23 Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Beginning Fund Balance 0.00 2,089,343.00 0.0%

Interest from Earnings 13,252.34 62,680.00 21.14%

Other Resources

Grants 0.00 4,000,000.00 0.0%

Land Sales & Contract Interest

V&G

Interest 309.44

Principal 450.56

Total V&G 760.00

Land Sales & Contract Interest - Other 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.0%

Total Land Sales & Contract Interest 760.00 2,500,000.00 0.03%

Loan Repayments

CGCC 0.00 464,014.00 0.0%

City of Dufur 0.00 42,225.00 0.0%

Total Loan Repayments 0.00 506,239.00 0.0%

Other Income 0.00 4,000,000.00 0.0%

Total Other Resources 760.00 11,006,239.00 0.01%

Transfer from Other Funds

General Fund 0.00 1,300,000.00 0.0%

Total Transfer from Other Funds 0.00 1,300,000.00 0.0%

Total Income 14,012.34 14,458,262.00 0.1%

Gross Profit 14,012.34 14,458,262.00 0.1%

Expense

Capital Outlay 0.00 9,000,000.00 0.0%

Material & Services 0.00 405,000.00 0.0%

Special Payments 0.00 2,000,000.00 0.0%

Transfers & Contingency 0.00 400,000.00 0.0%

Total Expense 0.00 11,805,000.00 0.0%

Net Ordinary Income 14,012.34 2,653,262.00 0.53%
Net Income 14,012.34 2,653,262.00 0.53%

9/177



PORT OF THE DALLES AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
MEETING DATE   August 9, 2023 
 
ACTION ITEM F-3.)  Resolution No. 2023-004 Adopting a Supplemental Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION Approve Resolution No. 2023-004 Adopting a Supplemental Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 as 

presented 
 

 
Proposed Amendments 
 

• A Supplemental Budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 was adopted on June 14, 2023, applicable changes have been applied to the 
Adopted Budget This Year 2022-23 Column in this Fiscal Year’s 2023-2024 Proposed Supplemental Budget. 

• Additionally, general clerical matching up of category names/lines has been accomplished in this Fiscal Year’s 2023-2024 Pro-
posed Supplemental Budget. Specifically in the Marina Fund: Per Oregon Budget Law, Debt Service needs to be reflected as a 
separate category from Transfers to Other Funds & Contingency, and Transfers to Other Funds & Contingency, need to be di-
vided into separate line items; the Marina Fund was amended accordingly in the Supplemental Budget adopted for Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 and is being carried over for this Fiscal Year’s 2023-2024 Proposed Supplemental Budget. 

 
 
 

10/177



FORM RESOURCES
LB-20 GENERAL FUND Port of The Dalles

Historical Data
Budget for Next Year 2023-2024*

Actual
Adopted Budget 

This Year 
2022-23

RESOURCE DESCRIPTION

Second Preceding 
Year 20-21

First Preceding 
Year 21-22

Proposed By 
Budget Officer

Approved By 
Budget Committee

Adopted By 
Governing Body

1 $ 1,320,746 $ 1,371,940 $ 924,904  1 Beginning cash on hand(1) (cash basis) or $ 1,096,994 $ 1,096,994 $ 1,096,994 1

2 $ 12,974 $ 8,500 $ 5,549  2 Interest from Cash in Bank $ 32,910 $ 32,910 $ 32,910 2

3 $ 0 $ 200,000 $ 1,389,520  3 Transfer from Other Funds  $ 1,008,068 $ 1,008,068 $ 1,008,068 3

4 $ 2,722 $ 10,927 $ 5,000  4 Previously levied taxes estimated to be received $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 4

5  5 OTHER RESOURCES 5

6 $ 65,631 $ 10,723 $ 4,000,000  6 Grants (2) $ 4,000,000 $ 4,000,000 $ 4,000,000 6

7 $ 3,494 $ 2,475 $ 3,000  7 Launch ramp and Transient moorage $ 3,000 $ 3,000 $ 3,000 7

8 $ 26,104 $ 101,656 $ 84,466  8 Loan Repayments (3) $ 84,466 $ 84,466 $ 84,466 8

9 $ 44,564 $ 19,748 $ 95,000  9 Leased land and Facilities $ 60,000 $ 60,000 $ 60,000 9

10 $ 19,577 $ 15,824 $ 2,000   10 Other Income (4) $ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ 15,000 10

11   11 11

12   12 12

13   13 13

14   14 14

15 $ 1,495,812 $ 1,741,793 $ 6,509,440   15 Total resources, except taxes to be levied $ 6,305,438 $ 6,305,438 $ 6,305,438 15

16 $ 357,666   16 Taxes estimated to be received $ 430,251 $ 430,251 $ 430,251 16

17 $ 362,040 $ 367,882   17 Taxes collected in year levied 17

18 $ 1,857,852 $ 2,109,675 $ 6,867,105   18 TOTAL RESOURCES $ 6,735,689 $ 6,735,689 $ 6,735,689 18

FORM REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY
LB-30 GENERAL FUND Port of The Dalles

Historical Data
Budget for Next Year 2023-2024*

Actual
Adopted Budget 

This Year 
2022-23

REQUIREMENTS For:

Second Preceding 
Year 20-21

First Preceding 
Year 21-22

Administration Proposed By 
Budget Officer

Approved By 
Budget Committee

Adopted By 
Governing Body

PERSONAL SERVICES
1  $ 187,533  $ 181,776  $ 230,000  1 Wages and Salaries (1) $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 1

2  $ 88,259  $ 83,165  $ 100,000  2 Taxes and Benefits (2) $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 2

3  $ 275,792  $ 264,941  $ 330,000  3 TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES $ 400,000 $ 400,000 $ 400,000 3

4 2 2 3  4 Total Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) 3.0 3.0 3.0 4

5  5 MATERIAL AND SERVICES 5

6  $ 22,537  $ 6,924  $ 12,000  6 Office Supplies & Equipment (3) $ 12,000 $ 12,000 $ 12,000 6

7  $ 9,890  $ 9,552  $ 19,000  7 Utilities (4) $ 19,000 $ 19,000 $ 19,000 7

8  $ 41,604  $ 7,965  $ 18,000  8 Maintenance: supplies and services $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 20,000 8

9  $ 5,566  $ 16,181  $ 35,000  9 Travel, Education, and Meetings (5) $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 9

10  $ 13,874  $ 15,321  $ 20,000   10 Insurance- Property and Liability $ 25,000 $ 25,000 $ 25,000 10

11  $ 23,595  $ 15,095  $ 24,000   11 Dues and Memberships $ 30,000 $ 30,000 $ 30,000 11

12  $ 4,899  $ 10,035  $ 11,000   12 Legal $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 20,000 12

13  $ 4,700  $ 7,250  $ 10,000   13 Accounting & Audit $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 20,000 13

14  $ 16,845  $ 18,287  $ 50,000   14 Contracted Services $ 75,000 $ 75,000 $ 75,000 14

15  $ 17,731  $ 37,613  $ 17,000   15 Launch Ramp and Transient Moorage $ 25,000 $ 25,000 $ 25,000 15

16  $ 161,241  $ 144,223  $ 216,000   16 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES $ 296,000 $ 296,000 $ 296,000 16

17   17 CAPITAL OUTLAY 17

18  $ 48,879  $ 12,875  $ 50,000   18 Port Facilities $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 18

19  $ -0  $ 24,429  $ 4,000,000   19 Launch Ramp/Transient Moorage $ 4,000,000 $ 4,000,000 $ 4,000,000 19

20  $ 48,879  $ 37,304  $ 4,050,000   20 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAYS $ 4,050,000 $ 4,050,000 $ 4,050,000 20

21   21 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS & CONTINGENCY 21

22  $ -0  $ 800,000  $ 500,000   22 Transfer to other funds $ 1,300,000 $ 1,300,000 $ 1,300,000 22

23  $ -0  $ -0  $ 100,000   23 General Operating Contingency $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 23

24  $ -0  $ 800,000  $ 600,000   24 TOTAL TRANSFER AND CONTINGENCY $ 1,400,000 $ 1,400,000 $ 1,400,000 24

25  $ 485,912  $ 1,246,468  $ 5,196,000   25 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 6,146,000 $ 6,146,000 $ 6,146,000 25

26  $ 1,371,940  $ 863,207   $ 1,671,105   26 UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 589,689 $ 589,689 $ 589,689 26

27  $ 1,857,852  $ 2,109,675   $ 6,867,105   27 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS $ 6,735,689 $ 6,735,689 $ 6,735,689 27

* May not sum to total due to rounding 1. Wages have been combined; 2. Payroll taxes and benefits have been combined; 3. Office supplies and equipment have been combined; 4.All utilities have been combined; 5. Travel, staff development, and communication have been combined;

11/177



FORM RESOURCES
LB-20 PORT DEVELOPMENT FUND Port of The Dalles

Historical Data
Budget for Next Year 2023-2024*

Actual Adopted Budget 
This Year 
2022-23

RESOURCE DESCRIPTION
Second Preceding 

Year 20-21
First Preceding 

Year 21-22
Proposed By 

Budget Officer
Approved By 

Budget Committee
Adopted By 

Governing Body

1 $ 3,191,744 $ 1,916,076 $ 1,433,744 1 Beginning cash on hand*(1) (cash basis) or $ 2,089,343 $ 2,089,343 $ 2,089,343 1

2 $ 23,584 $ 8,322 $ 8,602 2 Interest from Earnings $ 62,680 $ 62,680 $ 62,680 2

3 $ 0 $ 0 $ 500,000 3 Transfer from Other Funds $ 1,300,000 $ 1,300,000 $ 1,300,000 3

4 4 OTHER RESOURCES 4

5 $ 0 $ 0 $ 4,000,000 5 Grants           $ 4,000,000 $ 4,000,000 $ 4,000,000 5

6 $ 9,109 $ 9,130 $ 1,505,000 6 Land Sales & Interest from Contracts $ 2,500,000 $ 2,500,000 $ 2,500,000 6

7 $ 159,119 $ 26,525 $ 5,000,000 7 Other Income $ 4,000,000 $ 4,000,000 $ 4,000,000 7

8 $ 39,310 $ 39,310 $ 39,310 8 Loan Repayment City of Dufur $ 42,225 $ 42,225 $ 42,225 8

9 $ 231,122 $ 612,289 $ 539,310 9 Loan Repayment CGCC $ 464,014 $ 464,014 $ 464,014 9

10 $ 3,653,988 $ 2,611,652 $ 13,025,966 10 TOTAL RESOURCES $ 14,458,262 $ 14,458,262 $ 14,458,262 10

* May not sum to total due to rounding  (1) The balance of cash, cash equivalents and investments in the fund at the beginning of the budget year

FORM REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY
Port of The DallesLB-30 PORT DEVELOPMENT FUND

Historical Data
Budget for Next Year 2023-2024*

Actual
Adopted Budget 

This Year 
2022-23

REQUIREMENTS For:
Second 

Preceding 
Year 20-21

First Preceding 
Year 21-22

Economic Development and Marke<ng Proposed By 
Budget Officer

Approved By 
Budget Committee

Adopted By 
Governing Body

1   1 MATERIAL AND SERVICES 1

2 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0   2 Utilities $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 2

3 $ 3,918 $ 3,931 $ 15,000   3 Travel, marketing promotion, and meetings $ 25,000 $ 25,000 $ 25,000 3

4 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0   4 Insurance - liability $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 4

5 $ 4,602 $ 630 $ 15,000   5 Legal $ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ 15,000 5

6 $ 10,000 $ 7,265 $ 10,000   6 Accounting & Audit $ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ 15,000 6

7 $ 113,485 $ 47,272 $ 200,000   7 Contracted Services $ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000 7

8 $ 0 $ 1,396 $ 150,500   8 Land Sale Costs (i.e. closing, commisisions) $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ 150,000 8

9 $ 132,005 $ 60,494 $ 390,500   9 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES $ 405,000 $ 405,000 $ 405,000 9

10   10 CAPITAL OUTLAYS 10

11 $ 0 $ 0 $ 8,500,000   11 Land Acquisition, Development, Improvements $ 9,000,000 $ 9,000,000 $ 9,000,000 11

12 $ 3,231 $ 0 $ 0   12 Partnership Projects $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 12

13 $ 3,231 $ 0 $ 8,500,000   13 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAYS $ 9,000,000 $ 9,000,000 $ 9,000,000 13

14   14 SPECIAL PAYMENTS 14

15 $ 1,300,000 $ 0 $ 0   15 CGCC partnership project $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 15

16 $ 0 $ 0 $ 3,000,000   16 Other partnership projects $ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000 16

17 $ 1,300,000 $ 0 $ 3,000,000   17 TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES $ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000 17

18   18 DEBT SERVICE 18

19 $ 152,676 $ 156,577 $ 0   19 Debt Service $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 19

20 $ 152,676 $ 156,577 $ 0   20 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 20

21   21 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS & CONTINGENCY 21

22 $ 150,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000   22 Transfer to Other Funds $ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000 22

23 $ 0 $ 0 $ 200,000   23 General Operating Contingency $ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000 23

24 $ 150,000 $ 200,000 $ 400,000   24 TOTAL TRANSFERS AND CONTINGENCY $ 400,000 $ 400,000 $ 400,000 24

25 $ 1,737,912 $ 417,071 $ 12,290,500   25 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 11,805,000 $ 11,805,000 $ 11,805,000 25

26 $ 1,916,076 $ 2,194,581 $ 735,466   26 UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 2,653,262 $ 2,653,262 $ 2,653,262 26

27 $ 3,653,988 $ 2,611,652 $ 13,025,966   27 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS $ 14,458,262 $ 14,458,262 $ 14,458,262 27

* May not sum to total due to rounding  1. Wages have been combined; 2. Payroll taxes and benefits have been combined

12/177



FORM SPECIAL FUND RESOURCES
LB-20 MARINA FUND Port of The Dalles

Historical Data
Budget for Next Year 2023-2024*

Actual
Adopted Budget 

This Year 
2022-23

RESOURCE DESCRIPTION
Second 

Preceding 
Year 20-21

First Preceding 
Year 21-22

Proposed By 
Budget Officer

Approved By 
Budget Committee

Adopted By 
Governing Body

1 $ 54,114 $ 54,498 $ 127,956  1 Beginning cash on hand(1) (cash basis) or $ 337,157 $ 337,157 $ 337,157 1

2 $ 384 $ 284 $ 768  2 Interest from Earnings $ 10,115 $ 10,115 $ 10,115 2

3  3 OTHER RESOURCES 5

4 $ 0 $ 1,162,641 $ 1,500,000  4 Fire Emergency $ 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000 4

5 $ 54,498 $ 1,217,423 $ 1,628,724  5 TOTAL RESOURCES $ 1,847,272 $ 1,847,272 $ 1,847,272 5

6 0.5 0 0  6 Total Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) 0 0 0 6

FORM SPECIAL FUND REQUIREMENTS
LB-30 MARINA FUND Port of The Dalles

Historical Data
Budget for Next Year 2023-2024*

Actual
Adopted Budget 

This Year 
2022-23

REQUIREMENTS FOR:
Second 

Preceding 
Year 20-21

First Preceding 
Year 21-22

Marina Proposed By 
Budget Officer

Approved By 
Budget Committee

Adopted By 
Governing Body

7  7 MATERIAL AND SERVICES 7

8 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0  8  TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 8

9  9 CAPITAL OUTLAYS 9

10 $ 893,717 $ 300,000   10 Fire Emergency $ 900,000 $ 900,000 $ 900,000 10

11 $ 0 $ 893,717 $ 300,000   11 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAYS $ 900,000 $ 900,000 $ 900,000 11

12   12 DEBT SERVICE 12

13  $ 84,466   13 General Fund Loan Repayment $ 84,466 $ 84,466 $ 84,466 13

14  $ 84,466   14 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE $ 84,466 $ 84,466 $ 84,466 14

15   15  TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS & CONTINGENCY 15

16  $ 1,189,520   16 Transfer to Other Funds $ 808,068 $ 808,068 $ 808,068 16

17  $ -0   17 General Operating Contingency $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 17

18  $ -0  $ -0  $ 1,189,520   18 TOTAL TRANSFER AND CONTINGENCY $ 808,068 $ 808,068 $ 808,068 18

19  $ 84,466   19 Debt Service $ 84,466 $ 84,466 $ 84,466 19

20  $ -0  $ 893,717  $ 1,573,986   20 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 1,792,534 $ 1,792,534 $ 1,792,534 20

21   21 21

22  $ 54,498  $ 323,706  $ 54,738   22 UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 54,738 $ 54,738 $ 54,738 22

23  $ 54,498  $ 1,217,423  $ 1,628,724   23 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS $ 1,847,272 $ 1,847,272 $ 1,847,272 23

13/177



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-004 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING BUDGET TRANSFERS AND ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-
2024, FROM AND WITHIN FUNDS OF THE PORT OF THE DALLES ADOPTED FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET. 

WHEREAS, ORS 294.463 allows for transfers of appropriations within funds or between funds, and; 

WHEREAS, ORS 294.471 allows for a supplemental budget if an occurrence or condition that was not known at the time the budget was 
prepared requires a change in financial planning, and; 

WHEREAS, ORS 294.471(3)(a) allows if the amended estimated expenditures contained in an individual fund that is being changed by a 
supplemental budget differ by 10 percent or less from the expenditures in the budget as most recently amended prior to the supplemental 
budget, the governing body of the municipal corporation may adopt the supplemental budget at a regular meeting of the governing 
body. 

WHEREAS, in the General Fund, Resources, Adopted Budget This Year 2022-23 Column, Line 3, Transfer from Other Funds, corrected 
the amount to $1,389,520 to include the transfer of $1,189,520 that was budgeted from the Marina Fund, and; 

WHEREAS, in the General Fund, Resources, Adopted Budget This Year 2022-23 Column, Line 8, Loan Repayments, corrected the amount 
to $84,466 to reflect loan repayment from Marina Fund, and; 

WHEREAS, in the General Fund, Resources, Adopted Budget This Year 2022-23 Column, Line 15, Total resources, except taxes to be 
levied, increased by $1,261,987, to total $6,509,440, and; 

WHEREAS, in the General Fund, Resources, Adopted Budget This Year 2022-23 Column, Line 18, Total Resources, increased by 
$1,261,987, to total $6,867,105, and; 

WHEREAS, in the General Fund, Requirements, Adopted Budget This Year 2022-23 Column, Line 26, Unappropriated Ending Fund 
Balance, increased by $1,261,987, to total $1,671,105, and; 

WHEREAS, in the General Fund, Requirements, Adopted Budget This Year 2022-23 Column, Line 27, Total Requirements, increased by 
$1,261,987, to total $6,867,105 

WHEREAS, in the Port Development Fund, Requirements, Line 21, Transfer to Other Funds, adding the word Contingency for 
consistency with other fund category titles, to be Transfer to Other Funds & Contingency, and; 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Requirements, Line 12, renaming to Debt Service, and; 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Requirements, Line 13, renaming to General Fund Loan Repayment and adding the amount of $84,466, 
and; 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Requirements, Adopted Budget This Year 2022-23 Column, Line 13, adding the amount $84,466 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Requirements, Line 14, renaming to Total Debt Service, in the amount of $84,466, and; 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Requirements, Adopted Budget This Year 2022-23 Column, Line 14, adding the amount $84,466, and; 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Requirements, Line 15, renaming to Transfer to Other Funds & Contingency, and; 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Requirements, Line 16, renaming to Transfer to Other Funds, remaining the same amount of $808,068, 
and; 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Requirements, Line 17, adding General Operating Contingency, in the amount of $0, and; 

14/177



 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Requirements, Line 18, adding Total Transfers & Contingency, remaining the same amount of $808,068, 
and; 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Requirements, Line 19, removing Debt Service, and associated amount $84,466, and; 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Requirements, Adopted Budget This Year 2022-23 Column, Line 19, removing amount $84,466, and; 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Requirements, Line 20, adding Total Expenditures, in the amount of $1,792,534, and; 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance moves to Line 22, and; 

WHEREAS, in the Marina Fund, Total Requirements moves to Line 23. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE PORT OF THE DALLES COMMISSION: 

1. Authorizing Budget Transfers. The Port Commission hereby authorizes the above transfer of appropriations between categories/lines 
in the Marina Fund, as included above and following. 

2. Clerical Changes. The Port Commission hereby authorizes staff to make necessary clerical changes to the Adopted Budget This Year 
2022-2023 Column and to the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, as included above and indicated in red in the following budget 
document. 

3. Adopt the Supplemental Budget. The Port Commission hereby adopts the Supplemental Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024, as 
included above and following. 

4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption by the Port Commission and shall remain in effect until receipt 
and acceptance of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Audit Report. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE PORT COMMISSION THIS 9TH DAY OF AUGUST 2023 

 

SIGNED:       ATTEST: 

_________________________    _________________________ 
Robert Wallace, President      John Willer, Secretary 
Board of Commissioners      Board of Commissioners 

15/177



 PORT OF THE DALLES AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
MEETING DATE   August 9, 2023 
 
REPORTS ITEM G-1.)  Director’s Report Executive Director Klaas 
 
 
Projects 

• Two new land leases have been signed: Lots 10 and 25 
• Power Constructors (the contractor installing new towers and power lines) will be vacating Lots 1, 2 and Tract B, by the end of 

August. Whiting Turner is interested in leasing Lots 1 and 2 once Power Constructors vacates. 

Office 
• Executive Director Klaas participated in a Wasco County electric vehicle charging stakeholders meeting. This is one of a series 

of several meetings identifying ways that Wasco County and stakeholders can plan for and improve charging in Wasco Coun-
ty. 

• Executive Director Klaas met with Sue Davis, Executive Director, Columbia Gorge Community College Foundation to talk 
about ways the Port and College can work together to support students and workforce. This meeting was prompted because 
of the new connection between the college and ClimateGM. ClimateGM wants to ensure that they are satisfying the Port’s re-
quirement for community engagement, part of which is through the foundation. 

• Executive Director Klaas and Executive Assistant Toepke met with Commissioner Hanlon to provide her with new commis-
sioner information and background on the Port, Port history, and current Port projects. 

• Executive Assistant Toepke met with Jacob Ybarra, a new representative for BiCoastal Media Radio. 
• Executive Director Klaas and Executive Assistant Toepke met with President Wallace. 
• Executive Director Klaas met with the Project Manager, Jody Callahan, for ClimateGM and will be making community intro-

ductions for him. 
• Executive Director Klaas is participating as a committee member of the Rule-making Advisory Committee for the Department 

of State Lands re-write of the wetland’s rules. (OAP 141-089) There are a series of meetings that are taking place over the next 
few months. When there are technical questions related to vegetation and wildlife, Shilah Olson, District Manager, Wasco 
County Water and Soil District, has been very helpful. 

• Executive Assistant Toepke met with Glenn Dolphin, Environmental Programs Coordinator, Clean Marina Program, Oregon 
State Marine Board. The Port was first certified as a Clean Marina a few years ago and then recertified in 2022. Mr. Dolphin 

16/177



visits the Port (The Dalles Marina) annually to deliver new material (flags, signs, etc.) and discuss any needs or questions that 
Port staff may have about the Clean Marina Program. 

• Executive Director Klaas and Executive Assistant Toepke attended the Wy’East and Wasco County Water and Soil Conserva-
tion District summer barbecue in Dufur. It was nice meeting some of the staff that we have only spoken with on the phone. 

• Some of the gentlemen mechanics stopped by to do some tinkering on the old GMC Truck. 
• As part of the annual audit, the auditors do an audit walk-through which took place this last month. 
• Executive Assistant Toepke attended a virtual Introduction to Oregon Public Records as a refresher. 
• The Port received a call that there was a big homeless encampment located under the walking bridge between Northern Was-

co County PUD and the Bargeway Pub. Executive Assistant Toepke worked with Officer Macnab to notice the site, then with 
Rod Haunte of Get ‘Er Done, on the cleanup. Wasco County Water and Soil Conservation District helped by allowing the Port 
access through their property to the Riverfront Trail. It was quite an established camp with a very large tent, smaller tents, 
multiple mattresses, chairs, and many other items. 

• The Port received a call from Senator Merkley’s Office that our $3.2 million Community Directed Funding request for land ac-
quisition did not make the cut. The recommendation from Senator Merkley’s Office is that once we have a project that is ready 
to go to resubmit. 

• Wasco County Board of Commissioners, by unanimous vote, appointed Elaine Albrich as the Wasco County representative to 
the Columbia River Gorge Commission. Mrs. Albrich is replacing Rodger Nichols due to his term ending. Mrs. Albrich will be 
a great addition to the Gorge Commission as a representative for us; she has been invited to the September Port Commission 
Meeting in Dufur so she can introduce herself. 

 
The Dalles Marina 

• The Oil Spill Liability Trust Fund request for reimbursement for costs incurred during the Marina Fire 07-03-2021 response is 
still under review. The Port may be pulling the currently submitted claim and then resubmitting it later. At issue is the Federal 
Government cannot consider the reimbursement request until all other avenues of payment have been exhausted. Two insur-
ance companies have entered lawsuits with one or more of the affected property owners to recoup their losses, so no review of 
the Port’s claim can occur until after this has been resolved. 

• The Port has requested a dock rebuild bid from Bellingham Marine that would only accommodate boat moorage, no boat-
houses, to get a comparison on the cost. 

• The Dallas Marina, LLC called to let Port Staff know that they are receiving calls from boathouse owners in Hood River who 
are looking for space to move their boathouses to. Currently there is no space available in The Dalles Marina for this. 

• The Marina continues to be very busy, with many boats using the Launch Ramp every day, in addition to people fishing di-
rectly off the docks. 

• The second biannual treatment for algae will be this month. The Port and The Dalles Marina, LLC use the same contractor for 
the application, but as two separate contracts to minimize billing confusion. 

• The 2nd bathroom was locked for use for three days due to a broken lock; this makes 2 broken locks in 2 months. 
• The Launch Ramp & Parking Lot to see extra use the first weekend in August, do the Hood River Yacht Club’s Double 

Dammed Race (sailboats) taking place on August 7th from Cascade Locks to The Dalles. 
• Uncruise Adventures & Lindblad Expeditions will send their boats to dock at the Marina this September and October, howev-

er this season to preserve the condition of our Launch Ramp Dock - they will not be tying up directly to the dock, they will 
deep water anchor and shuttle their guests into the launch ramp by zodiac. 

 
Brownfield Coalition Update 

• The next event for this group will take place on September 12th or 13th. As part of the grant that was received for the work the 
was done, there needs to be a community meeting to share the outcomes of the projects. As part of this outreach the Brown-
field coalition is hoping to have tours of some of the properties that participated. Port staff will send out more information 
once the details are finalized. 

 
The Dalles Community Outreach Team 

• Executive Director Klaas and Executive Assistant Toepke met with Commissioner Scott Hege and City Clerk Izetta Grossman 
to gather some history of how the Community Outreach Team (COT) started, how the members were selected, and what was 
the original purpose.  

• With the hiring of Dan Spatz as the City of The Dalles Economic Development Officer, the City has expressed interest in pick-
ing up some of the work that the Port has been doing. For the fall trip the City will be producing the project and policy book 
that the team uses while in Washington, D.C. 

• Executive Assistant Toepke will be scheduling meetings for the trip. The trip dates are: September 16-21, 2023 
• The travel team is: Greg Weast, Andrea Klaas, Scott Hege, Rich Mays, Darcy Long, and Lisa Farquharson 

Other 
• Following for your information, find Port Commission & Staff Assignments, Association Memberships, and Executive Direc-

tor Commitments 
17/177



 
 
 
Port Commission & Staff Assignments 
1. The Dalles Community Outreach Team - Greg Weast 

• Comprised of 8 entities: Wasco County, City of The Dalles, Port of The Dalles, Northern Wasco County PUD, School 
District D21, Columbia Gorge Community College, Mid-Columbia Economic Development District, The Dalles Area 
Chamber of Commerce 

• Travel to Washington, D.C. twice a year (March & September) to advocate for funding and policy 
2. Wasco County Economic Development Commission - Jennifer Toepke 
3. Columbia Gateway Urban Renewal Agency Board - Staci Coburn 
4. The Dalles Area Chamber of Commerce Board, ex officio - Jennifer Toepke 
5. Dufur Visioning - Jennifer Toepke 
6. Dufur – Robert Wallace 
 
 
Association Memberships 
1. Mid-Columbia Economic Development District 
2. Oregon Public Ports Association 
3. Rotary Club of The Dalles 
4. Special Districts Association of Oregon  
5. The Dalles Area Chamber of Commerce 
6. Oregon State Marine Board 
7. Oregon Aviation Industry (ORAVI) 
8. OneGorge 
 
 
Executive Director Commitments 
1. KIHR (Hood River) and KODL (The Dalles) monthly radio show 
2. Regional Innovators HUB Leadership Team (bi-state, short term) 
3. The Dalles Community Outreach Team 
4. Wasco Innovators Initiative 
5. The Dalles Brownfields advisory committee 
6. Mid-Columbia Economic Resilience Team (bi-state) 
7. Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority 
8. Oregon Public Ports Association 
9. Special Districts Insurance Trust 
10. Special Districts Association of Oregon Legislative Committee 
11. Oregon Innovation Council Audit Committee 
12. Department of State Lands Wetlands rules committee (short term) 
13. Wasco County Electric Vehicle Charging Stakeholders (short term) 
 

18/177



PORT OF THE DALLES AGENDA ITEM 
 
 
MEETING DATE   August 9, 2023 
 
REPORTS ITEM G-2.)  Strategic Business Plan Update Report Executive Director Klaas 

o Strategic Business Plan Draft 
 
 
Following is the Draft Strategic Business Plan Update as received from Points Consulting; Staff has yet to give their feedback. Staff ap-
preciates receiving Commission comments and questions by August 14th, for Staff to relay to Points Consulting to prepare their 2nd 
Draft of the SBP, which will then be sent to the Commission on August 23rd for review prior to Points Consulting in-person presenta-
tion on August 30th at 5:30 p.m. 
 

19/177



Points Consulting 

PO Box 8487 

409 S. Jackson St., Suite 201 

Moscow, Idaho 83843 

208-596-5809 

points-consulting.com 

 

 

 

  

2023-2027 

Strategic Business 

Plan Update 

 

20/177



Contents 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21/177

https://pointsconsulting-my.sharepoint.com/personal/brian_points-consulting_com/Documents/Points%20Consulting/Projects/2244%20OR%20Port%20of%20Dalles%20SBP/Deliverables/Port%20of%20The%20Dalles%20SBP%20MASTER%20Draft.docx#_Toc141552705


 

 

 

 

1. Summary/Introduction 

Mission & Vision 

Mission: 

Vision: 

‐

‐

Port Commissioners 

22/177



Robert Wallace 

 

 

Greg Weast 

Staci Coburn 

23/177



 

John D. Willer

24/177



2. Port Inventories and Policies 

Sites and Facilities 

The Dalles Marina 

‐

 

25/177

https://www.portofthedalles.com/about-the-marina


Port Offices 

‐

 

26/177

https://www.portofthedalles.com/about-the-marina


Available Port Properties  

 

27/177



28/177

https://properties.zoomprospector.com/OREGON?s%5BSortDirection%5D=true&s%5BradiusLat%5D=0&s%5BSizeUnits%5D=1&s%5Bradius%5D=0&s%5BGeoEntityList%5D=25e984fc-8f87-4188-92e0-09e46a5d94d5&s%5BradiusLng%5D=0&s%5BSortBy%5D=featured&page=1


Spatial View of Port Properties 

 

29/177



 
 

30/177

https://properties.zoomprospector.com/OREGON?s%5BSortDirection%5D=true&s%5BradiusLat%5D=0&s%5BSizeUnits%5D=1&s%5Bradius%5D=0&s%5BGeoEntityList%5D=25e984fc-8f87-4188-92e0-09e46a5d94d5&s%5BradiusLng%5D=0&s%5BSortBy%5D=featured&page=1


 

31/177



32/177



33/177



Significant Partnerships and Programs 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Incentives and Abatements 

Incentives 

Fees/Permit Waivers and Reductions 

• 
• 

• 

Real Estate Incentives 

• 
• 
• 
• 

Financing Incentives 

Port of The Dalles 

• 
• 
• 

• 

34/177



Oregon Investment Board 

• 
• 
• 

• 

Mid Columbia Economic Development District 

• 
• 
• 

State of Oregon 

• 
• 
• 

Property Tax Abatement 

Enterprise Zone 

• 
• 

 

35/177



Port Policies 

 

36/177

https://www.oregon.gov/biz/Publications/Enterprise_Zone_Maps/TDW.pdf


Required and Allowable Port Activities 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

Port Commissioners 

• 

• 

• 

Taxation, Bonds, and Borrowing 

• 

 

37/177



3. SWOT 

Strengths 

• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 

• 

Weaknesses 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

38/177



• 

• 
• 

Opportunities 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Threats 

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 

 

39/177



4. Strategic Direction & Action Plan  

• 
• 

• 

• 

Goal 1: Facilitate High Quality Job Growth  

• 
• 

• 

• 

Goal 2: Develop High Impact Commercial and Industrial Opportunities  

• 

• 

• 
• 
• 

40/177



Goal 3: Enhance Tourism, Recreational, and Community Assets  

• 

• 

• 
• 

Goal 4: Support Mission of Community Partner Organizations 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
• 

o 
• 
• 
• 
• 

o 
•  

  

41/177



 

  

Port Owned Properties for Rent 

42/177



 

Partner with the Columbia-Gateway Urban Renewal Agency 

43/177

https://www.thedalles.org/government/urban_renewal_agency/index.php


Commercial/Industrial Properties for Sale in The Dalles 

44/177

https://www.thedalles.org/government/urban_renewal_agency/index.php


5. Stakeholder Interviews and Community Survey 

Stakeholder Interviews 

Desire for Improved Quality of Life and Beautification 

45/177



Urban Renewal and Blight Reduction 

Lack of Housing  

Workforce Shortage 

Unclarity on Port’s Mission 

46/177



Desire for Growth, Despite Substantive Challenges 

Opportunities for Networking and Connecting 

Shared Frustration at Lack of Commercial and Industrial Lands  

47/177



Opportunities in Dufur 

Community Survey 

Survey Responses 

 

48/177



 

49/177



 

50/177



51/177



0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14

Labor pool

Rail access

Other: Already established in the area

Other: No advantages because the gallery is off a
commericial trail

Other: Central to downtown (easy for customers to
get to)

Low local taxes

Land cost

River and port access

Cost of doing business

Close proximity to greater Portland area

Low electrical costs

Tourism due to outdoor recreation opportunities

Quality of life

Location near The Dalles

Highway access (such as HWY 197 & 30)

Outdoor recreational opportunities (for local
workforce)

Freeway access to I-84

52/177



53/177



 

0 2 4 6 8

Access to local markets and customers

Access to international markets and customers

Adequate public infrastructure transportation,
utilities, etc.

General business climate

Available, skilled workforce

Interaction with firms in the same and/or related
industries

Low electrical costs

Proximity to the Columbia River, I84, and other
transportation corridors

1 2 3 4 5

54/177



 

55/177



56/177



 

57/177



6. Background Conditions 

Socioeconomic Data 

58/177



59/177



60/177



61/177



 

62/177



7. Literature Review 

Port of The Dalles 2013 Strategic Business Plan 

Key Findings 

Strategic Plan Actions 

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 
• 
• 

63/177



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

64/177



• 

• 

• ‐

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

‐

65/177



• 

• 

Statewide Ports Plan 

• 

• 

• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

66/177



• 

• 

• 

• 

67/177



• 

• 

 

68/177



Appendix A: Meeting Memos 

February 15th Launch Meeting  

• 
• 

April 11th Administrative Meeting  

• 
• 

69/177



May 10th Business Leaders Lunch 

 

70/177



Questions for Luncheon 

Background 

• 

Business owners:  

• 

Real Estate/Buildings 

• 
• 
• 
• 

o 
• 

71/177

mailto:danderson@ci.the-dalles.or.us
mailto:rmays@ci.the-dalles.or.us
mailto:dspatz@cgcc.edu
mailto:bgoodwin@oregonfoodbank.org
mailto:sthornberry@oregonfoodbank.org
mailto:erik@crestlineconstruction.com
mailto:billk@crestlineconstruction.com
mailto:mcole@directline-it.com
mailto:shannon@hageelectric.com
mailto:czukin@meadowoutdoor.com
mailto:scottb@nwprd.org
mailto:andrew.r.meyers@odfw.oregon.gov
mailto:info@swellgelato.com
mailto:yvonnepepinwakefield@gmail.com


Government:  

• 
• 

Economy 

• 
o 

• 

Manufacturing 

• 

Small Industrial-type Businesses 

• 
o 
o 

May 10th SWOT Workshop 

• 
• 

 

72/177



Appendix B: Financial Status 

Notice of 2023-2024 Budget Hearing 

  

73/177



 

74/177



-  -1

ANNUAL BUDGET 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 

Presented: April 19, 2024 

BUDGET COMMITTEE 

Board Members Lay Members (3 year terms) 

       

Staff 
Andrea Klaas - Executive Director 

Jennifer Toepke - Executive Assistant 

3636 Klindt Drive • The Dalles, OR 97058 • 541-298-4148 • www.portofthedalles.com

Greg Weast   President 

Robert Wallace Vice-President 

Staci Coburn  Treasurer 

David A. Griffith Secretary 

John Willer  Asst Sec./Treas.

Position 1: Steve Kramer 6/30/2024 

Position 2: John Amery 6/30/2025  

Position 3: Nate Stice  6/30/2025 

Position 4: Allen Weast 6/30/2025 

Position 5: Ryan Bessette 6/30/2024

75/177

http://www.portofthedalles.com


-  -2

Budget Message 3 ..................................................................................................................

 Table 1: Work Plan 2022-2023 5 ..................................................................................

 Table 2: Tax Revenue Estimate 6 ..................................................................................

 Table 3: Historical Tax Receipts 6 ................................................................................

 Table 4: Top Ten Wasco County Taxpayers for Tax Year 2022 6 .................................

 Table 5: Historical Audited Resources and Expenditures - 2006 to 2022 7 .................

Proposed Budget Summary 8 ..............................................................................................

 Table 6: Summary of all funds 8 ...................................................................................

General Fund 9 ......................................................................................................................

 Table 7: Yr to Yr Resource Comparison 11 ..................................................................

 Table 8: Yr to Yr Expenditure Comparison 11 .............................................................

 Budget Detail Sheets 12 ................................................................................................

Port Development Fund 13 ..................................................................................................

 Table 9: Yr to Yr Resource Comparison 13 ..................................................................

 Table 10: Yr to Yr Expenditure Comparison 14 ...........................................................

 Budget Detail Sheets 15 ................................................................................................

Marina Fund 16 ....................................................................................................................

 Budget Detail Sheets 17 ................................................................................................

Glossary of Terms 18 ..............................................................................................................

Oregon Department of Revenue Chapter 8: Budget Committee Duties 19-22 ......................

Table of Contents

76/177



-  -3

TO:  Port of The Dalles Commission, Budget Committee, and Citizens 

RE:  Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget Message 

April 19, 2023    

I hereby present the recommended budget for the Port of The Dalles for the fiscal year beginning 

July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.  I am presenting a balanced budget as required by Oregon 

State law. 

The Port’s budget consists of three funds:  

• General Fund - This fund covers Port administrative functions and day to day operations, 

including the launch ramp and transient guest moorage operations at Port of The Dalles Marina. 

• Port Development Fund - This fund is used to accomplish the Port’s core mission of creating 

jobs through land development and sales, property acquisition, and project development. 

• Marina Fund – Although day-to-day operations of the marina have now been contracted out, 

the Port will continue to retain a Marina Fund in order to have funds available for marina 

projects. This fund was reactivated August 2021 due to the fire. 

A Look Back: 
• 2022-2023 saw the Port, as with many businesses, slowly emerge from the COVID pandemic. 

Many meetings were still available virtually, but many also offered an in-person option. The 

Port office was staffed full-time, and commission meetings returned to in-person.  

• Unbelievably there was a second, though much smaller, fire in the marina on the B dock. Five 

boathouses were destroyed, and others damaged. 

• While interest rates were low we saw a lot of activity from local businesses looking to expand. 

Unfortunately as rates started to go up, this cooled interest. 

• The Port continued to look for ways to work with the community of Dufur and the businesses 

there. 

• The Port and Wasco County continued to work together to address our concerns about the 

provisions in the management plan for the Columbia River Gorge National Scenic Area, recently 

adopted by the Columbia RIver Gorge Commission. This plan limits The Dalles Urban Growth 

expansion to a maximum of 50 acres.  

77/177



-  -4

• The Port joined with the City of The Dalles and Wasco County Economic Development 

Commission to help implement a $600,000 Environmental Protection Agency Brownfield’s grant 

that was awarded to the City of The Dalles. This was well received by property owners and the 

coalition is now seeking an additional $1million to continue the work. 

• The Port is completing a strategic business plan update as required by the Oregon Legislature by 

June 30, 2023. 

A Look Forward: 
Port staff are looking forward to continued normal operations during the 23/24 fiscal year. 

The main focus areas for the Port work plan have not changed, they continue to be: 

 1) Business expansion, retention, and recruitment 

 2) Acquire employment property to support the jobs that will enhance the economy of the  

     Port District 

 3) Partner with the cities of The Dalles and Dufur on projects of community benefit 

 5) Port Administration 

 6) Marina 

The Port will again budget funds for partnership projects with community partners, but also will look 

for State and Federal funding opportunities. Projects could include: assist Wasco County and the City of 

The Dalles in their efforts to expand the urban growth boundary, engage a grant writer, work with the 

community college, downtown redevelopment, property acquisition.   

The Port will continue to partner with the City of Dufur and look for opportunities to assist the 

community, focus on business recovery efforts in partnership with other economic development 

organizations in the region, and continue to evaluate economic development and job creation 

opportunities in the Port District. The Port will also work to develop strong partnerships with downtown 

The Dalles property owners and work with them to bring more businesses to the downtown core.  

This year I used a property valuation growth inline with the County and a collection rate of 90%. 

Historically the collection rates have hovered around 94%, but I am again budgeting conservatively and 

estimating a 2% tax base growth and 90% tax collection rate. 

Thank you for your time serving on the budget committee. 

Sincerely, 

Andrea Klaas, Budget Officer 

541-298-4148 

78/177



-  -5

Table 1: Work Plan 2022-2023
High Priority Low Priority

4/7/23

1 Develop and Implement Marketing Plan for the Port Notes/Comments

1.1 Develop marketing partnerships Airport

★★ 1.2 Invite area economic development partners to The Dalles On-going: include State and Federal legislators

★★ 1.3 Continue to update all marketing material On-going: website; inquiry response material; informational cut sheets and property information, 
newsletter, Outreach team book

★ 1.4 Develop a presentation; schedule service club talks to keep 
community informed about Port

On-going: Lions, ORDEQ, Regional Solutions, Infrastructure Finance Authority, Kiwanis, Rotary, City 
of The Dalles, Wasco County, School Board,….

★ 1.5 Community Special Districts Day

★ 1.6 Host regional Ports meeting annually Arlington, Rufus, Klickitat, Hood River, Cascade Locks, Skamania

★★ 1.7 Host Wasco County Special Districts brown bag lunch qrtly Invite district managers. Set aside 1 hour to discuss operations, best practices, collaboration, etc.

2 Business Expansion, Retention and Recruitment Notes/Comments

★★★★ 2.1 Contact all Port area businesses Call/meet with all businesses to check on business health, work force, anything else. Include Port 
Commissioners as their schedule permits.

★★★★ 2.2 Assist with business expansion, retention On-going: Partner with Main Street, City of The Dalles, Wasco EDC, Small Business Development 
Center; WorkSourceOR; Rural ag support

★ 2.3 Respond to State Leads On-going: Respond in a timely manner when appropriate

★ 2.4 Evaluate emerging business opportunities for our region On-going: look at trends and see if there are opportunities

★★★ 2.5 CORI partnership with Wasco EDC Wasco EDC and the Port of The Dalles are partnering with Google and Rural Innovation to work on 
community wide economic development planning, specifically in the technology sector. 
www.ruralinnovation.us

3 Acquire employment property that supports the 
creation, retention, expansion and recruitment of 
businesses and jobs that will enhance the economy of 
the Port

 
 
Notes/Comments

★★ 3.1 Identify potential private sector partners On-going: Identify building and land owners that the Port could partner with; identify financial 
partners

★★★★ 3.2 Look at purchasing/investing in real estate Evaluate on a case-by-case basis; Port’s investment should be recouped over time. Deal of the 
month

★★★ 3.3 Explore opportunities in Dufur Dufur has updated their strategic plan and is working on a waste water facilities update plan; Map 
industrial land and evaluate opportunities

★★★ 3.4 Support UGB expansion through CRGC Management Plan 
Update process

At this point, completed due to the adoption of the current management plan. May transition to 
another phase.

★★★ 3.5 Work with Randy Munsen to move batch plant up to rock pit. Federal issues-invite Federal legislators/staff for a walking tour to see the problem/solution

★ 3.6 County zoning maps with industrial land identified

★★★★ 3.7 Brownfields partnership with City and Wasco EDC

4 Downtown Involvement Notes/Comments

★★ 4.1 Look for partnership/support opportunities With City or MCEDD

★★ 4.2 Evaluate Electric Vehicle charging options downtown

5 Port Admin Notes/Comments

★★ 5.1 Update Policies per SDAO recommendations On-going

★★ 5.2 Community Outreach Team Support Transition from Port to County and MCEDD

★★★ 5.3 Update Port Strategic Plan Apply for PPM funds to cover a portion of the cost.

★★ 5.4  Update Employee Handbook to keep current with legislation Divide up handbook updates to accomplish over multiple years

★★★ 5.5 Port emergency preparedness plan Develop an emergency preparedness plan for Port operations and emergency response.

★★★★ 5.6 Complete office building rehab projects Repaint office - inside.

★★★ 5.7 Look for opportunities to leverage Port assets with State and 
Federal grants

6 Marina

★★★★ 6.1 Fire recovery

6.2 Work with OSMB on funding to update launch ramp 

79/177



-  -6

2023/2024

Port of The Dalles tax rate: $0.0002007

2023/2024 Estimate 2022/23 Actual
Total Assessed Value $ 2,571,796,967 $ 2,521,369,575
UR Excess Value $ (106,214,809) $ (104,132,166)
Value to Calculate Rate $ 2,465,582,157 $ 2,417,237,409
Taxes $ 494,842 $ 485,140
   less M5 Compression $ (16,785) $ (16,456)
   +Additional Taxes $116
Taxes to be Received $ 478,057 $ 468,799
County Collection Rate 90.4%

Port estimate based on  
90% collection rate: $ 430,251 $ 423,795
(Line 16 General Fund budget)

Table 2:Tax Revenue Estimate

Table 4: Top 10 Wasco County Taxpayers for Tax Year 2022

1 Google LLC (new) 6 Lumen Technologies LLC (Century Link 
and Level 3 Communications) (4)

2 Design LLC (7) 7 Oregon Cherry Growers LLC (new)

3 UPRR (1) 8 FM Dalles F LLC (Fred Meyer) (6)

4 Northern Wasco PUD (2) 9 Gas Transmission Northwest LLC (5)

5 BNSF Railway Company (new) 10 Northwest Natural Gas Company (9)

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

FYE14 FYE15 FYE16 FYE17 FYE18 FYE19 FYE20 FYE21 FYE22 FYE 23 budget Proposed 24

Table 3: Historical Tax Receipts

80/177



-  -7

General Fund

$0

$1,250,000

$2,500,000

$3,750,000

$5,000,000

06-07 07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11 11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22

Total Resources Total Expenditures

Table 5: Historical Audited Resources and Expenditures - 2006 to 2022

Port Development Fund

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

06-07 07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11 11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19 - 20 20-21 21-22

Total Resources Total Expenditures

Marina Fund

$0

$350,000

$700,000

$1,050,000

$1,400,000

06-07 07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11 11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22

Total Resources Total Expenditures

81/177



-  -8

2023/2024 Proposed Budget Summary 

Table 5: Summary of all Funds, combines the proposed budget amounts for the three Port funds and 

and compares the totals to the 2022/23 budgeted amounts.  

Table 6: Summary of all Funds

General Fund

Port 
Development 

Fund
Marina 
Fund

2023/24 
Proposed 

Budget Totals

2022/23 
Adopted 
Budget Delta

TOTAL RESOURCES $ 6,935,688 $ 14,458,262 $ 1,847,272 $ 23,241,222 $ 20,459,809 $ 2,781,413

REQUIREMENTS

 Personal Services $ 400,000 $ 0 $ 0 $ 400,000 $ 330,000 $ 70,000

 Materials and Services $ 296,000 $ 405,000 $ 0 $ 701,000 $ 606,500 $ 94,500

 Capital Outlay $ 4,050,000 $ 9,000,000 $ 900,000 $ 13,950,000 $ 12,850,000 $ 1,100,000

 Special Payments $ 0 $ 2,000,000 $ 0 $ 2,000,000 $ 3,000,000 $ (1,000,000)

 Debt Service $ 0 $ 0 $ 84,466 $ 84,466 $ 0 $ 84,466

 Transfers $ 1,300,000 $ 200,000 $ 808,068 $ 2,308,068 $ 700,000 $ 1,608,068

 Contingencies $ 100,000 $ 200,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 6,146,000 $ 11,805,000 $ 1,792,534 $ 19,743,534 $ 17,786,500 $ 1,957,034

Unappropriated Ending 
Fund Balance

$ 789,688 $ 2,653,262 $ 54,738 $ 3,497,688 $ 2,673,309 $ 824,379

Resources by Fund

8%

61%

31%

General Fund
Port Development Fund
Marina

Requirements by Allocation

12%

82%

4%

2%

Personal Services
Materials and Services
Capital Outlay
Special Payments

82/177



-  -9

GENERAL FUND:


The General Fund (GF) funds the Port’s day-to-day operating expenses. The GF is supported by 

the Port’s levy (projected to be $430,251 this year), leased land, interest, and some grants. 

Additionally, I have budgeted a transfer in of $200,000 from the Port Development Fund (PDF) to 

the GF. This is to cover PDF expenses that are now being accounted for in the GF. Continuing with 

the current philosophy of having the GF be the operating fund you will find that all resources and 

requirements related to property development and the marina are reflected in the Port Development 

Fund and Marina Fund (MF) respectively. Of note is $4 million in both resources and 

requirements. This is budgeted for a possible redesign and upgrade to the launch ramp and 

restroom facilities. This will only occur if the Port is able to get grant funding to cover the majority 

of the associated costs. 

Resources 
oLine 1. Beginning Cash on Hand –  $1,096,994. This is derived from the projected 

balance in both Umpqua Bank and the LGIP funds (as of 3/31/2023), less projected year-

end expenses and inter-fund transfers. 

oLine 2. Interest from Earnings – $32,910. This number is based on a 3% interest rate. 

oLine 6. Grants – $4,000,000. Possible project: Launch ramp redesign and rebuild  
oLine 7. Launch Ramp and Transient Moorage – $3,000 from transient guest moorage 

payments.  
oLine 8. Loan Repayments –  $84,466. This reflects marina fire loan payment. 
oLine 9. Leased Land & Facilities – $60,000. This represents projected rent from 

PowerEngineers, Crestline, and Meadow Billboard Lease. 

oLine 16. Taxes Estimated to be Received: $430,251 

oLine 18. TOTAL RESOURCES: $6,935,688 

83/177



-  -10

Requirements 
oLine 1. Wages and Salaries - This year the budget includes an additional person to help in 

the office. Salaries are for executive director, assistant to the director, and administrative 

support. 

oLine 2. Taxes and Benefits - Includes Port expenses associated with FICA, PERS, 

workman’s comp, unemployment, health, vision, and dental. 

oLine 8. Maintenance: Supplies and Services- Building and property upkeep. 

oLine 11. Dues and Memberships - This includes membership dues, association fees, and 

property tax payments. The Port pays the property tax bill on land that is leased, then 

invoices the lessee for repayment. 
oLine 14. Contracted Services – The Port is contracting for landscaping, lawn care, 

facilities maintenance, office cleaning. Also contemplated is a grant writer, possibly in 

partnership with other agencies. 

oLine 15. Launch Ramp and Transient Moorage- This covers the costs for the launch 

ramp and transient moorage docks. Items included are restrooms cleaning and maintenance, 

repairs to facilities, and utility expenses associated with these facilities. The Oregon State 

Marine Board does reimburse the Port for a portion of these costs. 

oLine 19. Launch Ramp/Transient Moorage - Capital outlay to upgrade the existing 

launch ramp and pubic restroom facilities. 

oLine 22. Transfer to Other Funds - $1,300,000 to be moved into the Port Development 

Fund if funds are available at year end. This is inline with our policy of returning excess 

resources to the Port Development Fund. 
oLine 27. TOTAL REQUIREMENTS: $6,935,688 

The proposed 2023/2024 budget will leave the General Fund with an unappropriated ending fund 

balance of $789,688 which is sufficient to cover GF operations from July 1, 2023 - December 1, 2023 

at which time we will receive our tax distribution from the County. 

84/177



-  -11

$0

$600,000

$1,200,000

$1,800,000

$2,400,000

FYE17 FYE18 FYE19 FYE20 FYE2021 FYE2022

Table 7: Year to Year GF Resource Comparison (audited)

$0

$75,000

$150,000

$225,000

$300,000

FYE17 FYE18 FYE19 FYE20 FYE21 FYE22

Personal Services Materials and Services Capital Outlay

Table 8: Year to Year GF Expenditure Comparison (audited)

85/177



-  -12

FORM RESOURCES
LB-20 GENERAL FUND Port of The Dalles

Historical Data
Budget for Next Year 2023-2024*

Actual
Adopted Budget 

This Year 
2022-23

RESOURCE DESCRIPTION

Second Preceding 
Year 20-21

First Preceding 
Year 21-22

Proposed By 
Budget Officer

Approved By 
Budget Committee

Adopted By 
Governing Body

1 $ 1,320,746 $ 1,521,940 $ 924,904   1 Beginning cash on hand(1) (cash basis) or $ 1,096,994 $ 0 $ 0 1

2 $ 12,974 $ 8,500 $ 5,549   2 Interest from Cash in Bank $ 32,910 $ 0 $ 0 2

3 $ 0 $ 0 $ 200,000   3 Transfer from Other Funds                   $ 200,000 $ 0 $ 0 3

4 $ 2,722 $ 10,927 $ 5,000   4 Previously levied taxes estimated to be received $ 5,000 $ 0 $ 0 4

5   5 OTHER RESOURCES 5

6 $ 65,631 $ 10,723 $ 4,000,000   6 Grants (2) $ 4,000,000 $ 0 $ 0 6

7 $ 3,494 $ 2,475 $ 3,000   7 Launch ramp and Transient moorage $ 3,000 $ 0 $ 0 7

8 $ 26,104 $ 101,656 $ 12,000   8 Loan Repayments (3) $ 84,466 $ 0 $ 0 8

9 $ 44,564 $ 19,748 $ 95,000   9 Leased land and Facilities $ 60,000 $ 0 $ 0 9

10 $ 19,577 $ 15,824 $ 2,000   10 Other Income (4) $ 15,000 $ 0 $ 0 10

11 $ 150,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000   11 Transfer In $ 1,008,068 11

12   12 12

13   13 13

14   14 14

15 $ 1,645,812 $ 1,891,793 $ 5,447,453   15 Total resources, except taxes to be levied $ 6,505,437 $ 0 $ 0 15

16 $ 357,666   16 Taxes estimated to be received $ 430,251 $ 0 $ 0 16

17 $ 362,040 $ 367,882   17 Taxes collected in year levied 17

18 $ 2,007,852 $ 2,259,675 $ 5,805,119   18 TOTAL RESOURCES $ 6,935,688 $ 0 $ 0 18

FORM REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY
LB-30 GENERAL FUND Port of The Dalles

Historical Data
Budget for Next Year 2023-2024*

Actual
Adopted Budget 

This Year 
2022-23

REQUIREMENTS For:

Second Preceding 
Year 20-21

First Preceding 
Year 21-22

Administration Proposed By 
Budget Officer

Approved By 
Budget Committee

Adopted By 
Governing Body

PERSONAL SERVICES
1  $ 187,533  $ 181,776  $ 230,000   1 Wages and Salaries (1) $ 300,000 $ 0 $ 0 1

2  $ 88,259  $ 83,165  $ 100,000   2 Taxes and Benefits (2) $ 100,000 $ 0 $ 0 2

3  $ 275,792  $ 264,941  $ 330,000   3 TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES $ 400,000 $ 0 $ 0 3

4 2 2 3   4 Total Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) 3.0 3.0 3.0 4

5   5 MATERIAL AND SERVICES 5

6  $ 22,537  $ 6,924  $ 12,000   6 Office Supplies & Equipment (3) $ 12,000 $ 0 $ 0 6

7  $ 9,890  $ 9,552  $ 19,000   7 Utilities (4) $ 19,000 $ 0 $ 0 7

8  $ 41,604  $ 7,965  $ 18,000   8 Maintenance: supplies and services $ 20,000 $ 0 $ 0 8

9  $ 5,566  $ 16,181  $ 35,000   9 Travel, Education, and Meetings (5) $ 50,000 $ 0 $ 0 9

10  $ 13,874  $ 15,321  $ 20,000   10 Insurance- Property and Liability $ 25,000 $ 0 $ 0 10

11  $ 23,595  $ 15,095  $ 24,000   11 Dues and Memberships $ 30,000 $ 0 $ 0 11

12  $ 4,899  $ 10,035  $ 11,000   12 Legal $ 20,000 $ 0 $ 0 12

13  $ 4,700  $ 7,250  $ 10,000   13 Accounting & Audit $ 20,000 $ 0 $ 0 13

14  $ 16,845  $ 18,287  $ 50,000   14 Contracted Services $ 75,000 $ 0 $ 0 14

15  $ 17,731  $ 37,613  $ 17,000   15 Launch Ramp and Transient Moorage $ 25,000 $ 0 $ 0 15

16  $ 161,241  $ 144,223  $ 216,000   16 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES $ 296,000 $ 0 $ 0 16

17   17 CAPITAL OUTLAY 17

18  $ 48,879  $ 12,875  $ 50,000   18 Port Facilities $ 50,000 $ 0 $ 0 18

19  $ -0  $ 24,429  $ 4,000,000   19 Launch Ramp/Transient Moorage $ 4,000,000 $ 0 $ 0 19

20  $ 48,879  $ 37,304  $ 4,050,000   20 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAYS $ 4,050,000 $ 0 $ 0 20

21   21 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS & CONTINGENCY 21

22  $ -0  $ 800,000  $ 500,000   22 Transfer to other funds $ 1,300,000 $ 0 $ 0 22

23  $ -0  $ -0  $ 100,000   23 General Operating Contingency $ 100,000 $ 0 $ 0 23

24  $ -0  $ 800,000  $ 600,000   24 TOTAL TRANSFER AND CONTINGENCY $ 1,400,000 $ 0 $ 0 24

25  $ 485,912  $ 1,246,468  $ 5,196,000   25 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 6,146,000 $ 0 $ 0 25

26  $ 1,521,940  $ 1,013,207  $ 609,119   26 UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 789,688 $ 0 $ 0 26

27  $ 2,007,852  $ 2,259,675  $ 5,805,119   27 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS $ 6,935,688 $ 0 $ 0 27

* May not sum to total due to rounding 1. Wages have been combined; 2. Payroll taxes and benefits have been combined; 3. Office supplies and equipment have been combined; 4.All utilities have been combined; 5. Travel, staff development, and communication have been combined; 

86/177



-  -13

PORT DEVELOPMENT FUND: 

This fund is the Port’s “Development” Fund (PDF) and we will be working on leveraging this fund this 

year. The Port will focus efforts on attaining State and Federal grants and Congressionally marks.  This 

fund is intended to be used for acquisition, development, and marketing of development projects in the 

2023/24 year. The Port continues to work with the City of Dufur to assist with needs in their growing 

community and will look for industrial development opportunities. A strong focus this year will be on 

property acquisition efforts and identifying ways that the Port can continue to help the economy of the 

Port District grow. 

Resources 
oLine 1. Cash on Hand – $2,089,343. This number comes from the projected balance in both 

Umpqua Bank and the LGIP fund. 
oLine 2. Interest From Earnings – This is based on a 3% interest rate. 

oLine 3. Transfer From Other Funds - $1,300,000. This is a possible transfer in from the 

General Fund.  

oLine 5. Grants - This is a budgeted number so that we are able to receive money into this 

account. Possible grants to help area businesses, purchase property, invest in infrastructure. 

oLine 6. Land Sales & Interest From Contracts – This is based on selling 4 acres at 

$500,000/acre, plus existing land contracts. 

oLine 7. Other Income -  Budgeted at $4,000,000. The Port has applied for $3million in 

Congressional directed marks, and there may be other resources pursued this year. 
oLine 8. Loan Repayment - The Port has entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement with 

the City of Dufur to assist with their water system rebuild. The Port is lending Dufur 

$175,000 at an interest rate of 1.3% above the 1 year LIBOR rate for a term of 5 years. The 

interest rate is equal to 4% this year and the agreement provides that the rate may be adjusted 

annually and will never go below 4%. Current 1 year LIBOR rate as of April 14, 2023 = 

5.3%, so the interest rate will increase to 6.6% this year. 

oLine 11. TOTAL RESOURCES: $14,458,262 

$0

$1,500,000

$3,000,000

$4,500,000

$6,000,000

FYE17 FYE18 FYE19 FYE20 FYE21 FYE22

Table 9: Year to Year PDF Resource Comparison (audited)

87/177



-  -14

Requirements
oLine 6. Accounting & Audit - This fund’s contribution to audit costs. 
oLine 11. Land Acquisition, Development, Improvements – $9,000,000 For potential 

projects. 

oLine 16. Other Partnership Projects – $2,000,000. This line item is included to partner 

with the City of The Dalles, the City Dufur, Wasco County, or other district/entity that the 

Port can legally partner with. 

oLine 22. Transfer to Other Funds - $200,000 to the General Fund to contribute to the cost 

of Port operations. 

oLine 23. Contingency - This has been increased to $200,000 and will be used to cover 

unanticipated expenses. 
oLine 27. TOTAL REQUIREMENTS: $14,458,262 

This will leave the Port Development Fund with an unappropriated ending fund balance of $2,653,262. 

$0

$35,000

$70,000

$105,000

$140,000

FYE17 FYE18 FYE19 FYE20 FYE21 FYE22

Personal Services Materials and Services

Table 10: Year to Year PDF Expenditure Comparison (audited)

88/177



-  -15

FORM RESOURCES
LB-20 PORT DEVELOPMENT FUND Port of The Dalles

Historical Data
Budget for Next Year 2023-2024*

Actual Adopted Budget 
This Year 
2022-23

RESOURCE DESCRIPTION
Second Preceding 

Year 20-21
First Preceding 

Year 21-22
Proposed By 

Budget Officer
Approved By 

Budget Committee
Adopted By 

Governing Body

1 $ 3,191,744 $ 1,916,076 $ 1,433,744 1 Beginning cash on hand*(1) (cash basis) or $ 2,089,343 $ 0 $ 0 1

2 $ 23,584 $ 8,322 $ 8,602 2 Interest from Earnings $ 62,680 $ 0 $ 0 2

3 $ 0 $ 0 $ 500,000 3 Transfer from Other Funds $ 1,300,000 $ 0 $ 0 3

4 4 OTHER RESOURCES 4

5 $ 0 $ 0 $ 4,000,000 5 Grants           $ 4,000,000 $ 0 $ 0 5

6 $ 9,109 $ 9,130 $ 1,505,000 6 Land Sales & Interest from Contracts $ 2,500,000 $ 0 $ 0 6

7 $ 159,119 $ 26,525 $ 5,000,000 7 Other Income $ 4,000,000 $ 0 $ 0 7

8 $ 39,310 $ 39,310 $ 39,310 8 Loan Repayment City of Dufur $ 42,225 $ 0 $ 0 8

9 $ 231,122 $ 612,289 $ 539,310 9 Loan Repayment CGCC $ 464,014 $ 0 $ 0 9

10 $ 3,653,988 $ 2,611,652 $ 13,025,966 10 TOTAL RESOURCES $ 14,458,262 $ 0 $ 0 10

* May not sum to total due to rounding  (1) The balance of cash, cash equivalents and investments in the fund at the beginning of the budget year

FORM REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY
Port of The DallesLB-30 PORT DEVELOPMENT FUND

Historical Data
Budget for Next Year 2023-2024*

Actual
Adopted Budget 

This Year 
2022-23

REQUIREMENTS For:
Second 

Preceding 
Year 20-21

First Preceding 
Year 21-22

Economic Development and Marke<ng Proposed By 
Budget Officer

Approved By 
Budget Committee

Adopted By 
Governing Body

1   1 MATERIAL AND SERVICES 1

2 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0   2 Utilities $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 2

3 $ 3,918 $ 3,931 $ 15,000   3 Travel, marketing promotion, and meetings $ 25,000 $ 0 $ 0 3

4 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0   4 Insurance - liability $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 4

5 $ 4,602 $ 630 $ 15,000   5 Legal $ 15,000 $ 0 $ 0 5

6 $ 10,000 $ 7,265 $ 10,000   6 Accounting & Audit $ 15,000 $ 0 $ 0 6

7 $ 113,485 $ 47,272 $ 200,000   7 Contracted Services $ 200,000 $ 0 $ 0 7

8 $ 0 $ 1,396 $ 150,500   8 Land Sale Costs (i.e. closing, commisisions) $ 150,000 $ 0 $ 0 8

9 $ 132,005 $ 60,494 $ 390,500   9 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES $ 405,000 $ 0 $ 0 9

10   10 CAPITAL OUTLAYS 10

11 $ 0 $ 0 $ 8,500,000   11 Land Acquisition, Development, Improvements $ 9,000,000 $ 0 $ 0 11

12 $ 3,231 $ 0 $ 0   12 Partnership Projects $ 0 12

13 $ 3,231 $ 0 $ 8,500,000   13 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAYS $ 9,000,000 $ 0 $ 0 13

14   14 SPECIAL PAYMENTS 14

15 $ 1,300,000 $ 0 $ 0   15 CGCC partnership project $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 15

16 $ 0 $ 0 $ 3,000,000   16 Other partnership projects $ 2,000,000 $ 0 $ 0 16

17 $ 1,300,000 $ 0 $ 3,000,000   17 TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES $ 2,000,000 $ 0 $ 0 17

18   18 DEBT SERVICE 18

19 $ 152,676 $ 156,577 $ 0   19 Debt Service $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 19

20 $ 152,676 $ 156,577 $ 0   20 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 20

21   21 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS 21

22 $ 150,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000   22 Transfer to Other Funds $ 200,000 $ 0 $ 0 22

23 $ 0 $ 0 $ 200,000   23 General Operating Contingency $ 200,000 $ 0 $ 0 23

24 $ 150,000 $ 200,000 $ 400,000   24 TOTAL TRANSFERS AND CONTINGENCY $ 400,000 $ 0 $ 0 24

25 $ 1,737,912 $ 417,071 $ 12,290,500   25 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 11,805,000 $ 0 $ 0 25

26 $ 1,916,076 $ 2,194,581 $ 735,466   26 UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 2,653,262 $ 0 $ 0 26

27 $ 3,653,988 $ 2,611,652 $ 13,025,966   27 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS $ 14,458,262 $ 0 $ 0 27

* May not sum to total due to rounding  1. Wages have been combined; 2. Payroll taxes and benefits have been combined

89/177



-  -16

MARINA FUND: 

This was another extraordinary year at the Marina. In 2021 the General Fund loaned the Marina Fund 

money to cover the costs of fire clean up and debris disposal. This budget reflects replacement projects 

as well as resources that may be received in this fiscal year. 

Resources 
oLine 1. Cash on Hand – $337,157.  This number comes from the projected balance in both 

Umpqua Bank and the LGIP fund. 

oLine 2. Interest from Earnings. Based on 3% interest rate 

oLine 4. Fire Emergency. $1,500,000 reimbursement receipts 
oLine 5. TOTAL RESOURCES: $1,847,272 

  

Requirementss 
oLine 14. Capital Outlays. $900,000 for construction projects in the marina, i.e new dock. 

oLine 17. Debt Service. $84,466 Loan payment to the General Fund. 
oLine 20. TOTAL REQUIREMENTS: $1,847,272 

This will leave the Marina Fund with an unappropriated ending fund balance of $54,738. We will 

retain this balance to be used in case the concessionaire agreement with The Dalles Marina, LLC is 

terminated. This balance will cover the cost of utilities and staff time to bring the marina back online 

as a Port function, cover insurance costs, and other fees that are related to the marina. 

90/177



-  -17

FORM SPECIAL FUND RESOURCES
LB-20 MARINA FUND Port of The Dalles

Historical Data
Budget for Next Year 2023-2024*

Actual
Adopted Budget 

This Year 
2022-23

RESOURCE DESCRIPTION
Second 

Preceding 
Year 20-21

First Preceding 
Year 21-22

Proposed By 
Budget Officer

Approved By 
Budget Committee

Adopted By 
Governing Body

1 $ 54,114 $ 54,498 $ 127,956   1 Beginning cash on hand(1) (cash basis) or $ 337,157 $ 0 $ 0 1

2 $ 384 $ 284 $ 768   2 Interest from Earnings $ 10,115 $ 0 $ 0 2

3   3 OTHER RESOURCES 5

4 $ 0 $ 1,162,641 $ 1,500,000   4 Fire Emergency $ 1,500,000 $ 0 $ 0 4

5 $ 54,498 $ 1,217,423 $ 1,628,724   5 TOTAL RESOURCES $ 1,847,272 5

6 0.5 0 0   6 Total Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) 0 0 0 6

FORM SPECIAL FUND REQUIREMENTS
LB-30 MARINA FUND Port of The Dalles

Historical Data
Budget for Next Year 2023-2024*

Actual
Adopted Budget 

This Year 
2022-23

REQUIREMENTS FOR:
Second 

Preceding 
Year 20-21

First Preceding 
Year 21-22

Marina Proposed By 
Budget Officer

Approved By 
Budget Committee

Adopted By 
Governing Body

7   7 MATERIAL AND SERVICES 7

8 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0   8  TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 8

9   9 CAPITAL OUTLAYS 9

10 $ 893,717 $ 300,000   10 Fire Emergency $ 900,000 $ 0 $ 0 10

11 $ 0 $ 893,717 $ 300,000   11 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAYS $ 900,000 $ 0 $ 0 11

12   12 OTHER EXPENSES 12

13   13 TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 13

14   14  TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS & DEBT 14

15 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0   15 TOTAL TRANSFER AND CONTINGENCY $ 808,068 $ 0 $ 0 15

16   16 Debt Service $ 84,466 $ 0 16

17 $ 0 $ 893,717 $ 300,000   17 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 1,792,534 $ 0 $ 0 17

18   18 18

19 $ 54,498 $ 323,706 $ 1,328,724   19 UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 54,738 $ 0 $ 0 19

20 $ 54,498 $ 1,217,423 $ 1,628,724   20 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS $ 1,847,272 $ 0 $ 0 20

 * May not sum to total due to rounding (1) The balance of cash, cash equivalents and investments in the fund at the beginning of the budget year. 

91/177



-  -18

Glossary of Terms 

COVID-19  Coronavirus disease 2019 .....

CRGC Columbia River Gorge Commission .............

EPA US Environmental Protection Agency .................

FICA Federal Insurance Contributions Act  ...............

LGIP Local Government Investment Pool  ...............

LIBOR London Inter-bank Offered Rate. A common benchmark for interest rates  ............

MCEDD Mid-Columbia Economic Development District .........

ORDEQ Oregon Department of Environment Quality  ..........

QB Quickbooks ..................

PERS Public Employee Retirement System  ..............

PUD Northern Wasco County People’s Utility District  ...............

SDAO Special Districts Association of Oregon .............

UGB Urban Growth Boundary ...............

Wasco EDC Wasco Economic Development Commission ....

92/177



-  -19

The Budget Committee and Approving the Budget 
(reprinted from Oregon Department of Revenue-Local Budgeting Manual 150-504-420(Rev. 05-12)) 

Budget committee members 
The budget committee is a local government’s fiscal planning advisory committee. The governing 

body of each local government must establish a budget committee (ORS 294.414, renumbered from 

294.336). The budget committee is composed of the governing body and an equal number of electors 

appointed by the governing body.6 An elector is a qualified voter who, for example, has the right to 

vote for a ballot measure submitted by the local government. 

If, after a good faith attempt, the governing body cannot find a sufficient number of registered voters 

who are willing to serve, the budget committee becomes those who are willing plus the governing 

body. If no will- ing electors can be found, the governing body is the budget committee [ORS 

294.414(2), renumbered from 294.336(2)]. 

The appointive members of the budget committee cannot be officers, agents or employees of the local 

government [ORS 294.414(4), renumbered from 294.336(4)]. An agent, generally, is someone who is 

authorized to act for the local government, or who can make commitments or sign contracts in the 

name of the local government. This is sometimes a grey area if an appointee candidate already serves 

on other advisory committees or com- missions of a local government. If you are in doubt about 

whether a particular person is an agent, consult your legal counsel. 

Spouses of officers, agents or employees of the local government may serve on the budget committee 

if they are qualified electors and not themselves officers, agents, or employees. 

Appointive members of the budget committee are appointed for three-year terms. The terms must be 

staggered so that about one-third of the terms end each year [ORS 294.414(5), renumbered from 

294.336(5)]. When a new local government is appointing its first budget committee, the terms may be 

for one year, two years and three years for each third of the appointive members. After the first two 

years, the local government will then be able to appoint all new members to three-year terms. 

If a local government prepares a biennial budget, the appointive members have four-year terms, with 

about one-fourth of the terms ending each year. 

Appointed budget committee members may be reappointed for additional terms, at the discretion of the 

governing body. 

If an appointive member of the budget committee is unable to complete the term, or resigns before the 

term is over, the governing body must appoint another elector to serve out the unexpired portion of the 

term [ORS 294.414(6), renumbered from 294.336(6)]. 

There is no provision in budget law for “stand-by” or “alternate” appointed members. 

93/177



-  -20

All members of the budget committee have equal authority. Each member’s vote counts the same. Any 

member can be elected by the committee as its chair. 

No member of the budget committee (including governing body members) may receive any 

compensation for their services as a member of the budget committee [ORS 294.414(3), renumbered 

from 294.336(3)]. 

Budget committee members should develop a general understanding of the budget process, the 

departments or programs included in the budget document, and the legal constraints imposed on the local 

government’s tax levy after budget committee approval. “Local Budgeting in Oregon” (150-504-400) is 

recommended as a good resource for budget committee members for information on the basics of 

taxation and budget law. This publication can be found at http://www.oregon.gov/dor/ptd/pages/

localb.aspx. You can also request copies of the booklet by calling the Finance and Taxation analysts at 

503-945-8293. 

Duties of the budget committee 
The budget committee meets publicly to review the budget document as proposed by the budget officer. 

The committee receives the proposed budget and the budget message and holds at least one meeting in 

which the public may ask questions about and comment on the budget. Notice of the first meeting held 

for these purposes must be published in a specific way (See “Chapter 9 – Publication Requirements”). 

The committee must eventually approve the budget and, if ad valorem property taxes are required, 

approve the amount of tax or the rate per $1,000 of assessed value for each levy that will be certified to 

the assessor. 

The budget committee may meet from time to time throughout the year at the governing body’s 

discretion for purposes such as training. All of these meetings are open to the public and notice of the 

meeting must be given in the same manner as notice for meetings of the governing body, or through one 

of the local budget law publication methods [ORS 294.428(2), renumbered from 294.406(2)]. Take care 

not to discuss specifics of the ensuing year’s budget at these informal meetings until the notice 

requirements for the first budget committee meeting have been satisfied. 

Copies of the budget 
The budget officer may make the proposed budget available to the budget committee at any time before 

the first budget committee meeting advertised in the notice. Alternatively, the budget officer may choose 

to make the budget available at the first budget committee meeting [ORS 294.426(6)(b), renumbered 

from 294.401(6)(b)]. Immediately following the release of the proposed budget to the budget committee, 

the budget officer must file a copy of the budget in the office of the governing body. This copy becomes 

a public record. The governing body must provide copies of this budget, or a means of quickly 

duplicating it, to any interested person. A local government may charge a fee for the copy [OAR 

150-294.401(7), implementing ORS 294.426]. 

94/177



-  -21

Budget committee meetings 
The budget committee must have a quorum present to hold a meeting [OAR 150-294.336-(B), 

implementing ORS 294.414]. A quorum is a majority of the total membership of the committee. For 

example, if the budget committee has 10 members, six must be present to hold a meeting. 

The budget committee elects a presiding officer from among the members at the first meeting [ORS 

294.414(9), renumbered from 294.336(9)]. The budget committee also hears the budget message at its 

first meeting. One of the committee’s most important duties is to hear and consider any testimony 

presented by the public about the budget. 

The budget committee reviews and, if a majority of the committee feels it is necessary, revises the 

proposed budget submitted by the budget officer. The committee generally studies the budget by 

comparing the two previous years’ actual data, the current budgeted data, and the figures proposed by 

the budget officer. The budget committee may reduce or increase the estimates of resources and 

requirements proposed by the budget officer. Among the most common items discussed are the 

questions of taxation (how much?) and allocating revenues and expenditures (where will the spending 

occur?). If the amount of tax revenue needed to balance the budget exceeds the local government’s 

existing taxing authority, the committee may decide that the additional amount needed should be 

requested from the voters in the form of a local option tax. If the committee decides to stay within its 

existing taxing authority, and other resources cannot be found, then the committee must reduce 

budgeted requirements to balance the budget. The committee must ultimately balance each fund and 

approve the budget. Committee members may not discuss or deliberate on the budget outside of a 

public meeting. 

The committee may ask questions of the executive officer or other staff, and request additional 

information. The committee is entitled to receive any information it needs to make decisions about the 

budget (ORS 294.428, renumbered from 294.406). 

Any budget committee action requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the total budget committee 

membership [OAR 150-294.336-(B), implementing ORS 294.414]. For example, if only six members 

of a 10-member committee are present, they have the quorum necessary to meet, but they all must vote 

in favor of any proposed action to achieve the required majority. 

The budget committee may approve the budget at the first meeting. However, it could take several 

meetings to do so. When the budget officer prepares the budget calendar, several budget committee 

meetings can be scheduled. The public notice then can include the date, time and place of each of the 

meetings. If more meetings are needed than were scheduled, give notice of those meetings in the same 

manner as notice of meetings of the governing body or by one or more of the publication methods used 

for the initial budget committee meetings [ORS 294.428(2), renumbered from 294.406(2)]. 

Approving the taxes 
The budget committee sets and approves the amount or rate of property taxes to be imposed. This is a 

95/177



-  -22

very important responsibility of the budget committee. Less than the full amount of the available tax 

revenue may be needed to balance the budget. In that event, the budget committee may choose to 

impose less tax than the lo- cal government’s full taxing authority. If that is the budget committee’s 

decision, then the amount or rate of tax the committee approves can only be increased later by the 

governing body after additional process steps. That is, to increase the tax above the rate or amount 

approved by the budget committee, the governing body must republish the financial summary and hold 

a second budget hearing (ORS 294.456, renumbered from 294.435). To enforce this requirement, a 

statement certifying that the approved tax has not been increased unless the governing body held a 

second hearing is included on the tax certification form filed with the county assessor. 

The committee’s motion to approve taxes under the district’s permanent rate authority may state either 

the tax rate per $1,000 of assessed value or the amount of taxes that the budget committee wants to 

impose. It must state separately the tax rate or amount to be imposed under any voter-approved local 

option authority. It must also state separately the amount of tax for any qualifying bonded debt levy. 

These statements should be re- corded in the minutes of the meeting. 

Once the budget committee has approved the budget, it has completed all of the duties required of it by 

Local Budget Law. However some local governments have a policy of including the budget committee 

in other parts of the process, such as adopting a supplemental budget. These are local policy decisions 

that are up to the discretion of the governing body. 

After the budget committee approves the budget, it is turned over to the governing body and the 

process enters into the adoption stage. The governing body has the final responsibility for allocating 

the resources of the bud- get to the programs and departments of the local government. This authority 

is part of the responsibility given the governing body to adopt the budget and to make the 

appropriations by which the budget is administered [ORS 294.456(1), renumbered from 294.435(1)]. 

Chapter 11 has more details on adopting the budget and making appropriations. 

If any changes are necessary after the budget committee approves the budget, the governing body may 

make the revisions after the budget hearing and before adopting the budget. The governing body’s 

authority to change the approved budget is limited. It cannot increase expenditures in a fund by more 

than $5,000 or 10 percent, whichever is greater, unless it publishes a revised financial summary and 

hearing notice, and holds another budget hearing. For a biennial budget, this limit is $10,000 or 10 

percent, whichever is greater. Also, it cannot increase the tax amount approved by the budget 

committee unless it publishes a revised financial summary and hearing notice, and holds another 

budget hearing.

96/177



Port of The Dalles Balance Sheet, 6/30/2022 

  

97/177



Port of The Dalles General Fund, Profits and Loss Budget, 6/30/2022 

98/177



 

99/177



The Dalles Marina, Profits and Loss Budget, 6/30/2022 

  

100/177



Port Development Fund, Profits and Loss Budget, 6/30/2022 

 

101/177



 

  

102/177



Appendix C: ORS 777 

Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 777 — Ports Generally 20217 

Ports 

Definitions 

Organization of Ports 

103/177

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors777.html


Facilities for World Maritime Trade 

104/177



105/177



106/177



107/177



108/177



109/177



110/177



111/177



112/177



113/177



114/177



115/177



Columbia River Channel Deepening Project

116/177



117/177



Annexation 

118/177



119/177



Port Fiscal Matters 

120/177



121/177



122/177



123/177



124/177



125/177



126/177



127/177



128/177



129/177



130/177



Special Elections 

Establishment of Water Transportation Lines 

131/177



132/177



Export Trading Corporations 

133/177



134/177



135/177



136/177



137/177



138/177



139/177



Oregon International Port of Coos Bay 

Temporary provisions relating to borrowing for Coos Bay Channel Project 

140/177



141/177



142/177



143/177



144/177



Penalties 

  

145/177



Appendix D: Local Zoning and Land Use Development 

Ordinances 

The Dalles Commercial Recreational Zone  

146/177



 

147/177



  

148/177



  

149/177



 

150/177



 

151/177



The Dalles Commercial/Light Industrial Zone 

  

152/177



  

153/177



 

154/177



 

155/177



 

156/177



 

157/177



 

158/177



 

159/177



 

160/177



The Dalles Industrial Zone 

 

161/177



 

162/177



 

163/177



164/177



165/177



 

166/177



 

167/177



168/177



 

 

 

 

Appendix E: Maps of The Dalles and Dufur 

169/177

https://properties.zoomprospector.com/OREGON?s%5BSortDirection%5D=true&s%5BradiusLat%5D=0&s%5BSizeUnits%5D=1&s%5Bradius%5D=0&s%5BGeoEntityList%5D=25e984fc-8f87-4188-92e0-09e46a5d94d5&s%5BradiusLng%5D=0&s%5BSortBy%5D=featured&page=1


 

170/177



 

171/177



 

172/177



173/177



 

 

 

 

174/177



 

 

 

 

 

175/177



176/177

https://www.oregon.gov/biz/Publications/Enterprise_Zone_Maps/TDW.pdf


177/177

https://www.thedalles.org/government/urban_renewal_agency/index.php

	Packet Financials.pdf
	Balance Sheet_July
	Sheet1

	P&L GF Summary_July 2023.pdf
	Sheet1

	P&L MF Summary_July 2023
	Sheet1

	P&L PDF Summary_July 2023
	Sheet1





